
Enterprise and Business Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 1 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
25 January 2012  

 

Meeting time: 
09:00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Siân Phipps 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8582 
enterprise.committee@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions   

2. Update on European Issues (9:00 - 9:30) (Pages 1 - 13)  
    Gregg Jones, Head of EU Office –Research Service 

  

3. Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 
public from the meeting for the following business:   

4. Draft Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill - Discussion on approach 
to consideration of Draft Bill  (Pages 14 - 22) 

Public Document Pack



 

Enquiry no: 12/0200/ Gregg Jones 1 18 January 2012 
 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

 

Enterprise and Business Committee 

 

Update on European Issues for meeting on 25 January 

 

Briefing :  

 

Date of paper: 18 January 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This briefing has been produced by the Research Service 

for use by the Enterprise and Business Committee. 

For further information, contact Gregg Jones (tel. 0032 2 
226 6692) Email: Gregg.Jones@wales.gov.uk  

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 

Enquiry no: 12/0200/ Gregg Jones 2 18 January 2012 
 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

 
Contents 
 
 

  

1. Introduction............................................................................................................................................. 3 

2. European Commission Work Programme 2012 ..................................................................... 3 

2.1. Delivering European renewal ...................................................................................... 3 

2.2. Potential areas of interest for Enterprise and Business Committee ............................. 4 

3. Broader strategic issues of concern to Wales ......................................................................... 4 

3.1. Eurozone crisis ........................................................................................................... 4 

3.2. Europe 2020 ............................................................................................................... 5 

Page 2



 

Enquiry no: 12/0200/ Gregg Jones 3 18 January 2012 
 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

 

1. Introduction 

This paper provides the Enterprise and Business Committee with an update on recent 

developments at the Brussels end, with the aim of informing the work planning of the 

Committee for 2012. 

It focuses in particular on the European Commission Work Programme 2012, published 

on 15 November 2011, highlighting issues falling within the remit of this Committee. 

It also makes reference to other developments considered of relevance to the Committee’s 

work. 

A separate background briefing has been prepared on the proposals for a new Horizon 

2020 EU Framework for Research and Innovation for the period 2014-2020, which were 

published at the end of November 2011. 

2. European Commission Work Programme 2012 

2.1. Delivering European renewal 

The headline slogan of the 2012 European Commission Work Programme is ‘delivering 

European renewal’ and this states that:  

…the EU’s overriding priority must be to foster a sustainable and job-rich economy (page 1) 

This reflects the wider political and economic context of financial and economic instability, 

including ongoing uncertainty around the future of the Eurozone. 

The Work Programme places emphasis on four overarching objectives, identifying a range 

of initiatives – many of which are ongoing themes/areas of work: 

� Building a Europe of stability and responsibility: includes financial sector reform, 

securing sustainable public revenue 

� Building a Union of sustainable growth and solidarity: renewal of the Single Market 

(proposals published in March 2011), empowering people in inclusive societies 

(flexicurity),  and paving a path to a sustainable future (including ‘blue growth’ see 

section 2.2 below, and the energy efficiency directive – proposals published June 2010) 

� Giving the EU an effective voice in the wider world: including EU enlargement policy, 

the neighbourhood policy (in context of the political instability in the southern 

Mediterranean in particular), and global policy (trade with China, Japan etc.) 

� Smart regulation and effective implementation: smarter spending (more from fewer 

resources) and smart regulation (reducing the administrative burden on businesses) 

As is customary practice the Work Programme includes a series of technical annexes listing 

129 forthcoming initiatives for 2012 (including commitments to deliver a number of these 

in 2012), 56 forthcoming initiatives for 2013, 28 simplification and administration burden 

initiatives, and finally 17 pending initiatives that are to be withdrawn. 

Page 3



 

Enquiry no: 12/0200/ Gregg Jones 4 18 January 2012 
 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

2.2. Potential areas of interest for Enterprise and Business Committee 

The European Commission’s Work Programme 2012 is relatively thin in terms of specific 

proposals in the annexes of initiatives falling within the Committee’s remit. Those that may 

potentially be of interest would include: 

� Review of guidelines on national regional aid: anticipated adoption of proposals 

September 2012 

� Review of state aid guidelines for broadband networks: anticipated adoption of 

proposals July 2012 

� Employment package (non-legislative proposals) which includes a Communication 

‘Towards a job rich economy’ and a Communication on the Flexicurity package. 

Anticipated adoption of proposals June 2012. 

� Blue Growth: sustainable growth from the oceans, seas and coasts (non-legislative), 

although this potentially falls more within the remit of the Environment and 

Sustainability Committee in particular given the work it is undertaking on the reform of 

the Common Fisheries Policy.  

In addition to these are a number of dossiers for which proposals have recently been 

published (Horizon 2020 has already been mentioned so isn’t included here), which are of 

potential interest to the Committee. The following is not an exhaustive list but highlights 

some that look of particular interest: 

� Connecting Europe Facility to improve Europe's transport, energy and digital 

networks, legislative proposals published in October 2011. This issue could potentially 

be covered as part of the EU Structural Funds inquiry, although the Committee may also 

wish to look at this separately 

� Revised package of State Aid rules on public compensation to Services of General 

Economic Interest (SGEIs), published on 20 December 2011 

� Maritime policy: new strategy for growth and jobs in the Atlantic Ocean area, non-

legislative strategy published in November 2011. This links to the ‘Blue Growth’ 

communication alluded to above, and may fall more within the remit of the Environment 

and Sustainability Committee 

� Economic Innovation Action Plan, published in December 2011 

Another approach the Committee may wish to consider is to look in broader terms at some 

of the key strategic issues/drivers on the EU agenda from the perspective of Welsh 

interests, and section 3 below runs through two of these that could potentially form the 

basis of inquiries during 2012. 

3. Broader strategic issues of concern to Wales 

3.1. Eurozone crisis 

The Eurozone crisis has been widely publicised in the UK/Welsh (and global) media, and 

along with the financial and economic crisis has dominated the EU agenda over the last 2-3 

Page 4



 

Enquiry no: 12/0200/ Gregg Jones 5 18 January 2012 
 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

years. Addressing the crisis is the central driving force of the 2012 Work Programme as has 

been noted already. 

The Europe 2020 strategy provides the overarching economic policy for European 

recovery, focused on delivering smart, sustainable and inclusive growth. 

In addition to this, the EU has agreed (and is in process of agreeing) a range of other 

measures aimed at trying to stabilise the EU economy, and address some of the perceived 

causes of the financial and economic crisis. 

This includes a plethora of measures1 aimed at: 

� strengthening regulation of the financial and banking sector (including a new EU 

level financial supervision framework, and various legislative proposals covering 

financial products/services) 

� strengthening EU economic governance (in particular the so-called Six Pact agreed in 

the autumn and the Euro Plus Pact agreed in March 2011) 

� putting in place financial mechanisms (originally the European Financial Stability 

Facility which will morph into the European Stability Mechanism from 2013 onwards) to 

support countries faced with particular difficulties (e.g. thus far Ireland, Portugal, and 

Greece). 

The House of Commons has launched a new inquiry into the Eurozone crisis in December 

2011, with a deadline for written evidence by mid-January. 

The House of Lords has launched a new inquiry into the Eurozone crisis, including the 

proposals for a 'fiscal compact' treaty discussed at the December European Council, and 

the agreed process by 26 of the 27 EU Member States to agree an international treaty (by 

March 2012) on strengthening budgetary discipline and economic policy coordination 

within the EU. 

For the Committee to consider: There may be merit in the Enterprise and Business 

Committee considering undertaking an inquiry looking at the Eurozone crisis and the 

potential impact on the Welsh economy. 

3.2. Europe 2020 

As noted above, the Europe 2020 strategy is the EU’s overarching economic policy aimed at 

setting the EU economy on the road to recovery. It has the headline aim of delivering smart, 

sustainable and inclusive growth, and is delivered through a combination of EU level action 

(including the EU budget, actions to strengthen the Single Market, and a series of thematic 

‘flagship initiatives’ to provide a strategic direction to actions taken on the ground) and 

through actions led by Member States. 

There is an annual economic governance cycle – the EU Semester – underpinning this, 

which begins with the publication of the Annual Growth Strategy by the European 

Commission (which includes guidelines to Member States for their employment and 

economic policies) and translates into the adoption of National Reform Programmes at 

                                           
1 See DG Economic and Financial Affairs web-site for further details. 

Page 5



 

Enquiry no: 12/0200/ Gregg Jones 6 18 January 2012 
 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

Member State level. The UK Government leads on the preparation of the UK NRP, in 

consultation with the Devolved Administrations, including the Welsh Government. 

For the Committee to consider: Given the European Commission is seeking to strengthen 

the strategic links between the future EU Structural Funds programmes (and rural 

development and fisheries funds) and the Europe 2020 governance cycle (including the 

National Reform Programmes), there may be merit in the Enterprise and Business 

Committee considering undertaking an inquiry to look at how the Welsh Government (and 

other Welsh stakeholders) are involved in the preparation of the UK NRP, and how they are 

taking actions to implement the Europe 2020 strategy on the ground. 

 

 

 

Page 6



 

Enquiry no: 12/0137/ Gregg Jones/Anne 
Thomas 1 18 January 2012 

 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

 

Enterprise and Business Committee 

 

Horizon 2020 EU Framework for Research and Innovation 

 

Briefing :  

 

Date of paper: 18 January 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This briefing has been produced by the Research Service 

for use by the Enterprise and Business Committee. 

For further information, contact Gregg Jones (tel. 0032 2 
226 6692) or Anne Thomas (ext 8966) 
Email: Gregg.Jones@wales.gov.uk or 
Anne.Thomas@wales.gov.uk  

 

Page 7



 

Enquiry no: 12/0137/ Gregg Jones/Anne 
Thomas 2 18 January 2012 

 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

 
Contents 
 
 

  

1. Horizon 2020 proposals ................................................................................................................... 3 

1.1. Introduction ................................................................................................................ 3 

1.2. EU decision-making process for agreeing the proposals ............................................ 3 

1.3. Main elements of Horizon 2020 ................................................................................. 4 

1.4. UK Government view................................................................................................... 5 

1.5. Scottish Parliament inquiry ......................................................................................... 6 

2. Relevance to Wales .............................................................................................................................. 6 

2.1. Underperformance in current EU research (and national) funding programmes .......... 6 

2.2. Synergies with EU Structural Funds ............................................................................. 7 

3. Potential opportunity for a future Committee inquiry? ..................................................... 7 

Page 8



 

Enquiry no: 12/0137/ Gregg Jones/Anne 
Thomas 3 18 January 2012 

 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

 

1. Horizon 2020 proposals1 

1.1. Introduction 

On 30 November 2011 the European Commission published legislative proposals which set 

out the legal framework for Horizon 2020, the EU Research and Innovation Programme for 

2014-2020. These proposals will be discussed and negotiated in Brussels over the coming 

12-18 months, and will determine the framework into which Welsh universities and 

businesses (in particular) will bid to try and secure EU research funding during the period 

covered. 

Horizon 2020 will succeed the current Framework Seven Research Programme (FP7), and 

also brings in elements of the current Competitiveness and Innovation Research 

Programme (which provides a range of support aimed at SMEs, including loan finance). This 

means Horizon 2020 will be the primary source of EU level funding for research and 

development activities of universities, research centres and businesses within the EU. As 

the main financial instrument of the EUs Innovation Union ‘flagship initiative’ of the 

Europe 2020 strategy, this means it is the primary source of EU funding (outside of the 

structural funds) to support innovation activities in the EU economy. 

The European Commission has proposed a budget of around €80 billion for the Horizon 

2020 programme, which represents an increase of over 40% on the current funding to FP7 

(approximately €52 billion). 

1.2. EU decision-making process for agreeing the proposals 

The Horizon 2020 proposals will be adopted through the ‘ordinary legislative process’ (co-

decision), which requires agreement by the European Parliament and the Council of 

Ministers (i.e. Member State governments) on the final text, with the European Commission 

acting as broker. 

The lead Committee in the European Parliament on these negotiations will be the Industry 

Research and Energy Committee, which is Chaired by German Christian Democrat MEP 

Herbert Reul. There are no Welsh MEPs on this Committee. However, there are four UK 

MEPs, three members and one substitute2. 

Within the Council of Ministers the lead will be taken by the Competitiveness Council. 

This Council has two meetings scheduled (21 February and 31 May) during the Danish 

Presidency of the EU, and is expected to discuss the Horizon 2020 proposals at both 

meetings. UK Ministers (and officials) will represent Wales on the Competitiveness Council 

and in its working groups. 

                                           
1 See DG Research web-site . 
2 Progress of the dossier through the legislative process can be monitored on the European 
Parliament’s Legislative Observatory web-site 

Page 9



 

Enquiry no: 12/0137/ Gregg Jones/Anne 
Thomas 4 18 January 2012 

 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

1.3. Main elements of Horizon 2020 

The European Commission has proposed structuring Horizon 2020 around three strategic 

objectives: 

� Excellent science – which aims to reinforce and extend the excellence of the European 

Union’s science base. This part consists of four specific objectives: 

- European Research Council (ERC) – to fund excellent research on the basis of pan-

European competition 

- Future and Emerging Technologies (FET) – to promote the development of radically 

new technologies based on high-risk exploratory ideas 

- Marie Curie Actions – to support researcher training, cross-border and cross-sector 

mobility 

- Research infrastructure – to develop European research infrastructure 

� Industrial leadership – which aims to maintain and build the European Union’s 

leadership in enabling technologies and space research and innovation. It is proposed 

to include support for: 

- Key Enabling Technologies (KETs) – Information and Communication Technologies 

(ICT), Nanotechnologies, Advanced Materials, Biotechnology, Advanced 

Manufacturing and Processing, and Space 

- Access to risk finance – providing a financial instrument for debt and a financial 

instrument for equity to improve the finance and risk profiles of research and 

innovation activities 

- Innovation in Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises (SMEs) – to mainstream SME 

support and promote market-oriented innovation. 

The Industrial Leadership strategic objective brings together in Horizon 2020 the 

‘innovation’ funding elements transferred from the current Competitiveness and 

Innovation Programme (CIP). 

� Societal challenges – which aims to use research and innovation to address major 

societal concerns across the European Union. The European Commission proposes to 

focus funding six grand challenges, to support work across fields, disciplines and 

technologies, along the whole of the innovation chain: 

- Health, demographic change and well-being 

- Food security, sustainable agriculture, marine and maritime research and the bio-

economy 

- Secure, clean and efficient energy 

- Smart, green and integrated transport 

- Climate action, resource efficiency and raw materials 

- Inclusive, innovative and secure societies 

Page 10



 

Enquiry no: 12/0137/ Gregg Jones/Anne 
Thomas 5 18 January 2012 

 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

The ‘Societal Challenges’ largely replace the ‘thematic research’ priorities that are the 

focus of the current FP7 collaborative research projects. For Horizon 2020 the European 

Commission has placed a far greater emphasis on ‘multi-disciplinary’ research within 

this strategic objective than is currently the case in FP7. 

In addition to these three strategic objectives the Horizon 2020 will also provide financial 

support to: 

� European Institute of Innovation and Technology (EIT), includes the work of 

integrating research, education and innovation through the EITs Knowledge and 

Innovation Communities (KICs) 

� Joint Research Centre: to provide a scientific evidence base and technical support 

across each of the three strategic objectives of Horizon 2020. 

A number of elements from FP7 have been moved out of Horizon 2020 into other EU 

policy/funding instruments. For example, actions to support widening of participation in 

EU research through the Regions of Knowledge and Research Potential of FP7, will be 

mainstreamed into the EU Structural Funds, whilst the European Commission has also 

included measures within the Erasmus for All (EU mobility support in field of education, 

training, youth and sport) to encourage knowledge alliances between academia and 

business. 

The core aim of Horizon 2020 will be to support excellence in EU research and innovation, 

and access to funding will be through competitive calls managed centrally by the EU (or 

through its agencies). This means there will be no pre-allocation to Wales or any Member 

State. Welsh organisations seeking to secure funding through Horizon 2020 will need to 

win in these competitive rounds, in the vast majority of cases done through collaborative 

projects with partners from other parts of the EU (and potentially from outside of the EU). 

Finally, the European Commission also states an objective to deliver simplification in 

Horizon 2020, through a single of set of rules for applicants, simple models for cost 

reimbursements, a single point of access for participants, and reducing the average time to 

grant by 100 days. 

1.4. UK Government view 

The UK Government has prepared an Explanatory Memorandum (EM)3, which is broadly 

supportive of the European Commission’s draft proposals. 

…The Government agrees that Horizon 2020 should play a central role in implementing the 

Europe 2020 strategy, notably the Innovation Union flagship initiative.  It has the potential 

to help promote growth, quality of life and promoting sound, evidence-based policies at 

national and EU level. Overall, the Government considers that the Commission proposals 

are broadly in line with the UK’s priorities set out in a position paper published in May 

2011. (Paragraph 34 of EM) 

Although supporting a greater share of the overall EU budget going to research and 

innovation, the UK Government does not support the proposed increase in spending for 

                                           
3 Published on 20 December 2011 – see UK Cabinet Office web-site 

Page 11



 

Enquiry no: 12/0137/ Gregg Jones/Anne 
Thomas 6 18 January 2012 

 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

Horizon 2020 describing this as ‘unrealistic and out of line with the need for greater 

budgetary restraint’ (paragraph 39 of EM). 

The UK Government also broadly supports the proposed structure around the three 

strategic objectives and the proposals for each of these objectives, although it makes some 

suggestions for changes e.g. within the Industrial Leadership objective a ‘clearer focus on 

pre-commercial procurement as a means of stimulating innovation amongst SMEs’. 

The UK Government also ‘broadly welcomes’ the proposals for greater synergies between 

Horizon 2020 and EU Structural Funds programmes, and supports the aims to make 

Horizon 2020 funds easier for SMEs, and the commitment to simplifying rules for 

participation. 

1.5. Scottish Parliament inquiry 

The Scottish Parliament’s European and External Relations Committee is undertaking an 

inquiry into the Horizon 2020 proposals. It launched a call for written evidence on 13 

January with a deadline for contributions to be submitted by 24 February 2012. 

There are no details available at this stage of the terms of reference of this inquiry. 

2. Relevance to Wales 

2.1. Underperformance in current EU research (and national) funding 

programmes 

The European and External Affairs Committee of the National Assembly for Wales during 

the third Assembly carried out an inquiry into Welsh participation in EU research, 

innovation and lifelong learning programmes. This found that Wales is underperforming 

in EU research programmes in particular compared to other parts of the UK and called for a 

more ‘strategic approach’ to help address this: 

This inquiry found that there is definitely scope for Wales to ―up its game, in particular in 

accessing funding from the Framework Programme for Research and Technological 

Development (FP7) to boost Welsh research capacity. A more strategic approach to 

encourage participation in all of these EU programmes will help to achieve both the Welsh 

Government’s strategic objectives and the shared European goal of significantly increasing 

R&D spend across the EU, as set out in the Europe 2020 strategy. 

The Committee identified the need for ‘greater complementarity” between different EU 

funding programmes, including synergies with EU Structural Funds programmes in Wales. 

The Welsh Government response to the inquiry accepted all (some ‘in principle) of the 

Committee’s recommendations. 

The Enterprise and Learning Committee (Third Assembly) also identified similar issues 

during their Inquiry into Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) 

skills (November 2010-January 2011). One of their recommendations was: 

that the Welsh Assembly Government should ensure that Wales capitalises on non-domestic 

funding opportunities so that higher education institutions can work with local authorities 

and with high-tech industries in their areas on joint bids to develop innovative projects 

aimed at encouraging the take-up of STEM in education and employment. 

Page 12



 

Enquiry no: 12/0137/ Gregg Jones/Anne 
Thomas 7 18 January 2012 

 

Research Service 

Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil  

 

 

The recommendation was accepted by the Welsh Government , who said that this 

recommendation also complemented the findings of their own R&D Review Panel report. 

The Welsh Government’s own R and D Review Panel report had recommended that: 

the Assembly Government should provide advice and assistance to clients on external R&D 

programmes, work proactively to develop high quality bids, facilitate industry/academia 

links and proactively engage in the development of future frameworks e.g. EU Framework 

Programme 8. 

2.2. Synergies with EU Structural Funds 

During the ongoing inquiry into the draft legislative proposals for EU Structural Funds 

2014-2020 the Enterprise and Business Committee has taken evidence on the prioritisation 

of funding for research and innovation, and related topics (low carbon/energy efficiency, 

and SME competitiveness). 

This includes the concept of ‘stairways to excellence’, and how EU structural funds can be 

used to develop research capacity to enable underperforming regions become better able 

to compete for mainstream research funding (be this from national or EU research 

programmes, or from private sector). 

This point is particularly relevant given the thrust of the proposals from the European 

Commission is to focus Horizon 2020 exclusively excellence, and to use other EU funding 

programmes, in particular the EU Structural Funds, to support the policy objective of 

widening of participation in research. As noted above this represents a change from FP7 

where some support for broadening access and developing regional potential is available. 

3. Potential opportunity for a future Committee inquiry? 

The Committee may wish to consider the value of undertaking a short and focused inquiry 

(2-3 evidence sessions) into the Horizon 2020 EU framework for research and innovation, 

for which proposals were published at end of November 2011. For example an inquiry 

could potentially look at the following sorts of issues: 

� Reactions to the proposals from Welsh stakeholders, highlighting positive (including 

opportunities)and any negative elements to Wales 

� Consider how relevant policy developments in Wales aimed at improving the research 

and science base, such as the draft Science Strategy and Regional Innovation Strategy 

(and other relevant Welsh Government policies) are focused on enhancing Welsh 

participation in EU research programmes 

� Consider potential for synergies with the EU Structural Funds 2014-2020 aimed at 

supporting an improvement in the level of performance of Welsh HE and businesses in 

2014-2020 period compared to current and previous EU research programmes 

This could possibly be the first stage in a process that could see the Committee also 

considering during 2013 a follow-up inquiry on what preparations are underway in Wales 

in terms of ‘gearing up’ support to effectively participate in Horizon 2020, and linking this 

to the preparations for the future EU Structural Funds programmes (and other programmes 

as relevant – e.g. rural development and the maritime/fisheries funding). 

Page 13



Agenda Item 4

Page 14

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	2 Update on European Issues
	EBC(4)-03-12 Paper 2 - EU Briefing Paper - 25 Jan

	4 Draft Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill - Discussion on approach to consideration of Draft Bill

